Public Document Pack (& oxrorpshire
COUNTY COUNCIL

www.oxfordshire.gov.uk

No tice Of a Meeting Your council tax working for you

Children's Services Scrutiny Committee
Monday, 5 October 2009 at 3.00 pm

County Hall, Oxford
Membership

Chairman - Councillor Ann Bonner
Deputy Chairman — Councillor Neil Owen

Councillors: M. Altaf-Khan Anda Fitzgerald- Tony Harbour
Marilyn Badcock O'Connor Dave Sexon
Roger Belson Janet Godden Val Smith
Pete Handley
Co-optees: Chris Bevan Hajjat Ramzy Sue Matthew
Notes: Date of next meeting: 5 November 2009

What does this Committee review or scrutinise?

e Services for children, young people and families; preventative services; child
protection; family support, educational policy; youth service; youth justice;

e Primary & secondary schools; special education; pupil services; school transport;
music service

e Conduct of best value reviews as specified in Paragraph 9 of Schedule 2 to the
Functions Regulations

How can | have my say?

We welcome the views of the community on any issues in relation to the responsibilities
of this Committee. Members of the public may ask to speak on any item on the agenda
or may suggest matters which they would like the Committee to look at. Requests to
speak must be submitted to the Committee Officer below no later than 9 am on the
working day before the date of the meeting.

For more information about this Committee please contact:

Chairman - Councillor Ann Bonner
E.Mail: anne.bonner@oxfordshire.gov.uk
Committee Officer - Julie Dean, Tel: (01865) 815322

E.Mail: julie.dean@oxfordshire.gov.uk

fony (MSlac
N

Tony Cloke
Assistant Head of Legal & Democratic Services September 2009

County Hall, New Road, Oxford, OX1 1ND
www.oxfordshire.gov.uk Fax: 01865 783195 Media Enquiries 01865 815266




About the County Council

The Oxfordshire County Council is made up of 74 councillors who are democratically
elected every four years. The Council provides a range of services to Oxfordshire’s
630,000 residents. These include:

schools social & health care libraries and museums
the fire service roads trading standards
land use transport planning waste management

Each year the Council manages £0.9 billion of public money in providing these services.
Most decisions are taken by a Cabinet of 10 Councillors, which makes decisions about
service priorities and spending. Some decisions will now be delegated to individual
members of the Cabinet.

About Scrutiny

Scrutiny is about:

e Providing a challenge to the Cabinet
e Examining how well the Cabinet and the Authority are performing

¢ Influencing the Cabinet on decisions that affect local people

e Helping the Cabinet to develop Council policies

e Representing the community in Council decision making

e Promoting joined up working across the authority’s work and with partners
Scrutiny is NOT about:

¢ Making day to day service decisions

e Investigating individual complaints.

What does this Committee do?

The Committee meets up to 6 times a year or more. It develops a work programme,
which lists the issues it plans to investigate. These investigations can include whole
committee investigations undertaken during the meeting, or reviews by a panel of
members doing research and talking to lots of people outside of the meeting. Once an
investigation is completed the Committee provides its advice to the Cabinet, the full
Council or other scrutiny committees. Meetings are open to the public and all reports are
available to the public unless exempt or confidential, when the items would be
considered in closed session

If you have any special requirements (such as a large print
version of these papers or special access facilities) please
contact the officer named on the front page, giving as much
notice as possible before the meeting

A hearing loop is available at County Hall.

Q\j@(‘(g recycled paper 2—%




AGENDA

Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments

Declarations of Interest - see guidance note

Speaking to or petitioning the Committee

Call in of a decision by the Cabinet - Oxford School - Feasibility Study into
replacing it with an academy (Pages 1 - 30)

In accordance with Rule 16 of the Scrutiny Procedure Rules, the Proper Officer has
agreed to a request from the following Councillors for a Call In of the Cabinet’s decision
made on 15 September in relation to ‘Oxford School — Feasibility Study into replacing it
with an Academy’.

Councillor Mohammed Altaf-Khan
Councillor Alan Armitage
Councillor Jean Fooks

Councillor John Goddard
Councillor Janet Godden
Councillor Jenny Hannaby
Councillor Zoe Patrick

Councillor Larry Sanders
Councillor Ros Smith

Councillor David Turner

The Cabinet decision was to:

(a) Note the content of the Expression of Interest;
(b) Agree to proceed with the ‘Feasibility Study’; and
(©) Request officers to bring a further report on the outcomes of consultations

undertaken as part of the ‘Feasibility Study’.

The reasons given for the request are:

1. Lack of consultation with parents, the community and local members.

2. The Expression of Interest is unclear because it mentions a primary school and
a special school being included without identifying them.

3. Any feasibility study should include looking at other options, not just the
academy.

4. The impact on the other schools in the area needs to be considered.

The report considered by Cabinet is attached (CH4)

Close of Meeting

ij@(‘(i/\ recycled paper 2—\%



Declarations of Interest

This note briefly summarises the position on interests which you must declare at the meeting.
Please refer to the Members’ Code of Conduct in Section DD of the Constitution for a fuller
description.

The duty to declare ...

You must always declare any “personal interest” in a matter under consideration, ie where the

matter affects (either positively or negatively):

(i) any of the financial and other interests which you are required to notify for inclusion in the
statutory Register of Members’ Interests; or

(i) your own well-being or financial position or that of any member of your family or any
person with whom you have a close association more than it would affect other people in
the County.

Whose interests are included ...

“Member of your family” in (ii) above includes spouses and partners and other relatives’ spouses
and partners, and extends to the employment and investment interests of relatives and friends
and their involvement in other bodies of various descriptions. For a full list of what “relative”
covers, please see the Code of Conduct.

When and what to declare ...

The best time to make any declaration is under the agenda item “Declarations of Interest”.
Under the Code you must declare not later than at the start of the item concerned or (if different)
as soon as the interest “becomes apparent”.

In making a declaration you must state the nature of the interest.

Taking part if you have an interest ...
Having made a declaration you may still take part in the debate and vote on the matter unless
your personal interest is also a “prejudicial” interest.

“Prejudicial” interests ...
A prejudicial interest is one which a member of the public knowing the relevant facts would think
so significant as to be likely to affect your judgment of the public interest.

What to do if your interest is prejudicial ...

If you have a prejudicial interest in any matter under consideration, you may remain in the room
but only for the purpose of making representations, answering questions or giving evidence
relating to the matter under consideration, provided that the public are also allowed to attend the
meeting for the same purpose, whether under a statutory right or otherwise.

Exceptions ...

There are a few circumstances where you may regard yourself as not having a prejudicial
interest or may participate even though you may have one. These, together with other rules
about participation in the case of a prejudicial interest, are set out in paragraphs 10 — 12 of the
Code.

Seeking Advice ...
It is your responsibility to decide whether any of these provisions apply to you in particular
circumstances, but you may wish to seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer before the meeting.

(‘é(% recycled paper 2—\%




Agenda ltem 4

Division(s): All

COPY
CABINET 15 SEPTEMBER 2009

OXFORD SCHOOL - FEASIBILITY STUDY INTO REPLACING IT
WITH AN ACADEMY

Report by Director for Children, Young People & Families
Introduction

1. Oxford School is a ‘National Challenge’ school because its headline GCSE
results fall below the national minimum threshold of 30% of its students
gaining 5 or more A*-C grades (including English & mathematics). County
Council staff have been working closely with the school to improve standards
and the forecasts for this year indicate the school will be closer to the 30%
threshold than it was in 2008.

2. Where, with additional support, a ‘National Challenge’ school fails to
demonstrate that it has the capacity to exceed sustainably the 30% threshold
from 2011 onwards, Local Authorities are expected to consider more radical
options, including replacing the school with an academy. Oxford School is
characterised by a declining attainment profile of students entering Year 7 and
has experienced difficulties in recruiting and retaining the best teachers.
Therefore County Council is now actively considering the academy option.

Expression of Interest

3. The first stage in the possible replacement of a school by an academy is for a
Local Authority to submit an ‘Expression of Interest’ (Eol) to the Department
for Children, Schools & Families (DCSF). This sets out the key features of the
proposal (age range, size, location etc. of the academy); details of the school
it would replace (pupil attainment, numbers on roll, turnover, levels of socio-
economic deprivation etc.); the sponsor(s) of the academy and potential
educational partners (higher performing schools or other educational
institutions such as colleges or universities); and an undertaking to comply
with key national codes of practice, including admissions.

4, An Eol in respect of Oxford School was submitted to the DCSF in August
2009. A copy is attached as Annex 1. DCSF officials in the ‘Operations Board’
have considered the Eol and passed it to the Schools Minister for his
approval. The outcome, if known, will be reported orally to the Cabinet
meeting.

5. If the Eol receives ministerial approval the next stage will be to undertake a
detailed ‘Feasibility Study’ which will look at the viability of the academy
proposal, including the capital investment that would be needed to create
appropriate modern accommodation. As part of the study the views of a wide
range of stakeholders will be sought about the proposal to replace Oxford

Page 1



CH4

School with an academy. Potential equality and diversity issues will be
considered at this stage.

6. As Oxford City is experiencing increased demand for primary school places
(forecast to continue for at least the next 6 years), consideration will be given
to whether this can be addressed, in part, through the academy’s age range
being extended downwards to create a primary ‘wing’.

Financial and Staff Implications

7. There are no financial implications arising directly from this report. If approval
is given to undertake the ‘Feasibility Study’ this will require County Council
staff to commit time to this. The activities to be undertaken as part of the study
will involve staff from Children, Young People & Families (mainly Raising
Achievement and School Organisation & Planning), Shared Services (Finance
and Human Resources), Environment & Economy (Property Services) and the
Corporate Core (Legal Services and Transformation). It would be appropriate
to establish a project team.

RECOMMENDATION

8. The Cabinet is RECOMMENDED to:
(a) note the content of the Expression of Interest;
(b) agree to proceed with the ‘Feasibility Study; and

(c) request officers to bring a further report on the outcomes of
consultations undertaken as part of the ‘Feasibility Study’.

JANET TOMLINSON
Director for Children, Young People & Families

Background papers: Nil
Contact Officer: Roy Leach, Strategic Lead School Organisation &
Planning

Roy.leach@oxfordshire.gov.uk 01865 - 816458

August 2009

Page 2



Version submifted o DCSF 24.8.09

department for
children, schools and families

CITY OF OXFORD (working title) ACADEMY

IN OXFORDSHIRE

EXPRESSION OF INTEREST FOR AN ACADEMY
REPLACING A PREDECESSOR SCHOOL

This form should be used alongside the following documents, which are
available from the Department for Children, Schools and Families website

(www.desf.gov.uk) or from your Expression of Interest Consultant.

1. The Expression of Interest Guidance
2. Sponsorship Guide: Establishing an Academy
3. Delivering Academy Buildings through PfS

Section 1: Executive Summary
1.1 Please provide a brief summary of the project:

This dynamic proposat could see Oxford School replaced iniﬁally byan11-18
Academy. The Academy would be sponsored by the United Leaming Trust
[ULT] and co-sponsored by Oxfordshire County Council,

Oxford City is currently experiencing, and forecast to continue to experience,
growth in demand for primary school places. A City-wide response to this will
include a thorough analysis of the provision of primary school piaces. As part of
the feasibility stage an assessment will be made of the potentiai to expand the
academy to accommodate primary and, perhaps, nursery aged children on the
same site. This will be considered alongside the need to raise attainment in
primary schools to better equip pupils to access the secondary school
curriculum. The costs of any non-secondary age piaces will be met by the
County Council using a variety of funding streams including Basic Need,
Primary Capital, capital receipts and deveioper (S.106) contributions as

appropriate.

The Academy would have a specialist focus upon English and also upon
Business and Enterprise. Raising core subject attainment, for instance
standards of literacy, would be a key priority as would be developing community
cohesion in the East Oxford area. ULT intend to develop close educational
partnerships with other institutions, inciuding ULT academies and independent
schools that would drive standards forward in the Academy.

1 Q3072009

Page 3



Version submitied to DCSF 24.8.09

Oxford School is an 11-18 mixed comprehensive serving the community of East
Oxford. East Oxford is socially, culturally and ethnically very diverse. This is
reflected in the school's population.

Although the Oxford School intake comes from a large number of primary
schools, there are typically fewer than 100 ‘first preferences’ as many families in
the immediate locality choose to send their children to other schools. Whilst the
Fast Oxford area itself is economically and socially a mixed community, the
school recruits mainly from the lower social-economic groups (Tax Credit
Indicator ~ 60%, the second highest secondary school figure in the county,
whilst that for the primary school is ~57%}. The school does not have a
balanced ability intake. Oxford 'School has a high number of pupils with SEN
{13% with a statement or SAP), EAL {33%), and in year turbulence of
approximately 10%. :

Oxford School is a National Challenge school, Attainment of 5+A*-C (EM) has
been consistently below the floor target, dropping to 23% in 2008. The expected
attainment for 2009 is likely to be close to the 30% floor target but the schoo!
does not yet have the capacity to remain sustainably above this. A contributing
factor is the inability of the school to recruit and retain the very best teachers,
particularly in the core subjects.

Attainment on entry to Oxford School is significantly below the Oxfordshire
average {KS2 APS 24.2, Oxon 27.8). This is the lowest of all of the city schools
and, in the face of competition from more successiul focal schools, continues te
decline. The number of pupils entering the schoo! with attainment at or below
L3, averaged 40% in the last three years. The Fischer Family Trust analyses
show that attainment at KS3 is broadly in iine with expectations, but progress
from KS3-4 is below expected lavels.

The previous Headteacher left in Aprif 2009 to take up another headship, and
the Governors have with Local Authority support made an interim appointment
to September 2010. The newly appointed Executive Head has a very good track
record of working in challenging schools.

The City of Oxford Academy would revitalise education from 11-19, and

potentially from as young as 3, in East Oxford and do so by responding to focal
community needs. it would impact on the wider community and its specialisms
would contribute directly to regeneration and the creation of opportunty for this

area.

2 03/07/2009

Page 4



Version spbmitted to DCSF 24.8.00

1.2 Key statistics

1. Predecessor School — Educational attainment

GCSE 5+ A* -C GCSE 5+ A“ -C inc Engiish and maths

2008 2005 2007 2008 f 2006 2006 2007 2008

58.3 58.5 60.8 84.8 44.3 433 46.0 47.3

CA o
Average 5386 56.3 57.0 624 44.6 47.3 47.6 50.0
School 1 20 36 32 31 19 26 27 21
CVA
Scores 2008 2007 2008
{KS2-4)

1001.8 980.9 1001.5
School 1 §91.1 998.7 1001.4

| 2. Predecessor School - Deprivation

Pupil rank {based
on number of Site rank (school

WEHMIEINEITEE I secondary schools) | location) of which 0

LRGN CEIERTIN out of 3377 of which | is the most deprived | % pupils etigible for
fo secondary 1is the most and 100 is the least Free School Meals

schools deprived) deprived (FSM}

2008
13.1

8.1(2% 9.4(1%

2008 2007

A Average
| School 1 | ? 40.78 206
3. Predecessor school - Basic charactaristics ]
National I
figures Pupils on | Pupils on | Pupils A ith p:ﬁ’p?:
U on SEN S
Guoted relate sy Rol Roll School 3 tavent | with EAL
lyte (3-11} | (11416) | (16-19) | capacity
secondary 2008 2008
schools.
20 10.6 %
LA Average 26 7.0
School 1 839 223 1279 et 329
3 0240712007

Page 5



Version submitied to DCSF 24.8.00

4. Proposed Academy — Basic characteristics

Planned |  Planned Planned
| Planned
numbgr of numbgr of numbgr of e —— Specialism{s)
pupils pupils pupils STt
(3-11) (11-16) {18-19)
English
Initially 0 200 250 1630~ Business &
ipse Enterprise
: Building route
Proposed E‘:}:ﬁegﬁ?‘fﬁ (BSF or Faith Name of
.opening date d';te Nationai Designation Sponsor(s}
Framework)
September 2010 National United Learning
: September 2013 Rramawork N/a Trust
Section 2; The Predecessor School
2.1 The academy would replace a secondary school.
2.2 Basic Characteristics
Schoot 1
Schoo! Name: Oxford School
School Address: Glanvifle Road
Oxford
OX4 2AU
Name of LA: Oxfordshire
Community School
Foundation School X
Voluntary Aided (VA) School
Voluntary Contralled (VC} School
City Technology College
independent
Other {piease spedfy)
Co-Educational X
Single Sex Boys
Single Sex Girls
Age Range 11-16
Age Range 11-19 X
Other Age Range (e.g. Middle
Schools)
4 03/07/2000

Page 6




Veargion submitted to DCSF 24.8.09

Yes e
with faith admissions theali )
Yas -
without faith admissions (Faith )
Na X
. ; . Business &
Specialism{s) if applicable): .
R W Zhe ) Entergrise
2.3 School Population
School 1
Admissions Number: 210
5 " Year 7: 179
urrert number :
of pupils on roll Year 8: 136
as at January Year 9. 155
2009 Year 14: 205
Year 11: 174
Sept 2005 184
Number of Year 7 Sept 2006 152
pupils admitted
in: Sept 2007 125
Sept 2008 175
Sept 2005 209
Number of Year
12-13 students at Sept 2006 201
the school in: Sept 2007 191
Sept 2008 218
Percentage of 2004/05 253
pupil population 23.7
whao joined or left 2005/06_;_ —
the school other 2008/07 216
than at the start
BrAniNoHlis 2007108 25.1

academic year:

2.4 Admissions

| Please attach a copy of the current Admissions Policy

School 1

Attached

Page 7

03/07/2008




Version submitted to OCSF 24.8.08

2.5 Leadership

School 1

Name of headteacher: Paul O'Brien

Headteacher has been in post for: ...0..... Year(s) ..2..... Meonths as of 5% June 2009.{date)

S

2.6 School Improvement

School 1

None

Special Measures

Significant improvement/Natice to Improve

Warning Notice issued X

Causing Concern X

Interim Executive Board

Required school to enter into partnership
arrangements

Added additional governors

Suspended delegated budget

Please provide details:

Does the predecessor Yes ~ National
school receive any Challenge
external support and/or
is it in receipt of a
taifored externat © Yes - other
suppert package?

No

if other, please provide details:

2.7 Finance

Schoot 1

Does the predecessor school Yes |

currently have a budget deficit? Mo ¥

8 03/07/2009

Page 8



Varsion submitted to DCSF 24.8 .09

if yes, please provide detais:

The school’s
headteacher, chair of
governars & business
manager wera “called in’
by the Birector and
Cabinet member for
fimance to justify the large
end of year (2008-9)
carry forward of

c.£184,000.
School 1
Does the predecessor school Yes | X
currently have an in- year deficit? No |

If yas, please provide details:

2009/10 budget includes
an in-year deficit of
£183,282 reducing the
carry forward surplus to
£274,

Section 3: The Proposed Academy

3.1 Academy Population

Gender (Mark one with an x)

Co-Educational

Single Sex Boys

Singie Sex Giris

Forms of Entry:

& for secondary

Admissions Number:

Nursery (age 3-5):

Primary (age 5 — 11)

Years 7-11 {age 11-16)

180

Years 12-13 (age 18-19):

7 031072009

Page 9




Version submitted to DCSF 24.8.09

Please provide a detaited justification for the size of the proposed academy:

Year 7 — i1

Oxford School currently has a capacity of 1279 but currently only has ¢. 1050 pupils on rofl, a
net surplus of ¢.230. For September 2008 121 places have been ailocated which will resuit
in ¢.50 additional surplus places as a larger Year 11 cohort leaves. However, it is known
from the current ‘bulge’ in Oxford City primary schools (first seen in September 2008 i.e.
Year 2 in September 2009) that the current decline in secondary age cohorts will be
reversed in 2014. In addition significant hotsing development on the edge of Oxford is
anticipated which will create demand for additional school places.

3.2 All-age Academies

if the academy would provide primary school places, please provide the case for an

all-age academy:

The following issues will be considered in detail as par to the feasibility stage.

In addition to the growing demand far primary age schoal places detailed above, one of the
major challenges facing Oxford Schoot {and the successor academy) is the low literacy and
numeracy levels of a significant proportion of the pupils entering Year 7. The creation of an
all-age academy would aflow the earliest possible identification for many of the pupiis with
the lowest literacy fevels and the initiation of intensive work with them at the earliest possible

cpportunity

Transition from primary to secondary schoof is also a major challenge for the most
villnerable pupils and an all-age academy would cbviate the need for this for many pupils.

If the academy proposes to cater for nursery pupils (age 3-8, please provide detaiis of
how this would fit with the LA’s strategic plan for nursery education:

There is an overall insufficiency of nursery school places in the Cowley (East Oxford) area,
The creation of a 52 x F3 and 52 x F2 place nursery would help to address this shortfall of
places whilst ensuring that more vuinerable children receive the high quality, intensive
support that will better equip them to engage with and benefit from primary education, both
in the academy and other neighbouring primary schools.

Does the LA confirm it would fund the capitaf costs of the primary Yes X
ang/or nursery element for the all-age academy?
N/A
3.3 Proposed Opening Date in existing buildings
September2010
8 03/07/2009

Page 10



Versior submitted to DCSF 24.8.09

34 Target Build Completion Date

l September
2013

3.5 Specialism(s)

The academy woldld specialise in: English and Business & Enterprise

3.6 Admissions

Flease canfirm that the academy's admissions policy and arrangements would be in
accordance with admissions law, the Schoal Admissions Codea of Practice and the Schoo!
Admission Appeals Code of Practice as they apply {6 maintained schools.

Confirmed X

Please confirm that the admissions policy would ensure that the academy meets the
statutory requirements (i.e. “provides education for pupils of different abilities who are wholly
or mainly drawn from the area in which the schaool is situated”).

Confirmed X

The academy would take up its place on the local admissions forum:

Confirmed X

If oversubscribed would the academy select up to 10% of its pupils by | Yes

aptitude for the specialism? No X

If yes, please provide details of how the sponsor would develop a selection mechanism that
is not dependent on ability;

Please provide any further details known about the proposed over subscription criteria and
admissions palicy. [n particular, how the pelicy would lead to a balanced intake and whether
“‘banding by ability” would be considered : The over-subscription criteria will be consistent
with those operated by Oxfordshire County Council;

1. Looked after children

2, Disabled children
3. a) Children living within the academy's designated area (the City of Oxford ) with a

sibling attending the academy at the time of admission
b} Children living within the academy’s designated area (the City of Oxford )

4. Chiidren living outside the designated area with a sibling attending the academy at
the time of admission

5. Children living closest to the school

In the event of over-subscription within any of 1 — 5 above, priority wilf be given to those
living closest to the school by the shortest designated public route recorded in the LA's
Geagraphle Information System.

9 030772009

Page 11



Version submilled lo DCSF 24.5.09

3.7 Exclusions

Please cenfirm that the academy would have regard to and have an independent appeal
panel which acts in accordance with the Secretary of State’s guidance on exclusions.

Confirmed X
3.8  Special Educational Needs (SEN)

Please confirm that the proposed academy's SEN palicy would Confirmed g
have regard to meet the requirements of the SEN Code of Practice.

X - Yes X
Would the academy be co-located with an SEN unit? If yes piease
note that the LA wouid bear all capitat costs No
If yes who wouid run the SEN unit? The academy The LA X

Please provide details of the SEN unit:

As part of ifts plans for Building Schools for the Future, the LA has included a Special Schoot
in its first project and provisionally allocated 100% new build. The school is 1.24 mifes from
the site of the academy on a site which would be difficult to develop whiist the school
remains in operation. The potential for the proposed Academy site is being assessed for its
potential to accommodate the special schoot as well as nursery, primary and secaondary
provision,

Please note that pupils in the unit should not be included in overall pupil numbers for the
academy. If the academy is proposing to manage the untt, revenue funding to support the
unit wilt be recouped from the Dedicated Schoals Grant.

3.9 The National Curriculum

Please confirm that the academy would teach the National Curricuium Programmes of Study
in English, maths, science and ICT to all pupils in years 1 to 6 {where these existin the
Academy) and years 7-11,

l Confirmed X

3.10 Behaviour Partnerships

' The academy would be part of a Behaviour Parinership and would work closely
with the LA to improve behaviour a2nd tackle persisient absence.

Confirmed X

10 03/07/2009

Page 12



Version subimitted to DCSF 24.8.09

3.11  Vision

Please provide a detailed statement about your vision for the proposed academy. This
should be no more than 6 pages long and should inciude reference to how your vision would
contribute to:

o improving standards via
o governance
leadership and management
teaching and learning
curriculum development and delivery
the flexibilities offered by the Academy model

[ea ol

o The Government's plans for 21st Century schools
o The 14-19 curriculum

o Stakeholder management

o The sustainabiity of the academy into the future

o Educational transformation for pupils, paying particular attention to how the
speciaiism/s would contribute to this across the whole curriculum

The Propaosal

The proposed City of Oxford Academy [COA ] would transform the provision
of education across the community of East Oxford; it would regenerate the
community by raising attainment and aspirations and also by enabling
opportunities, bringing together in one place a broad and effective range of
suppart and facilities for families and young people.

The Sponsors

The lead sponsor would be the United Learning Trust (ULT), partnered as
co-sponsor - by the Local Authority, Oxfordshire County Council. ULT is the
UK's largest sponsor of academies. itis a Christian educational charity
created to manage a family of academies across the country and is a
subsidiary of the United Church Schools Trust (UCST), a charity which has
already for 125 years run independent schools,

ULT partnered by the LA would bring experience, expertise and passion, to
create an Academy for the City of Oxford which will bring out the ‘Best in
Everyone’ and support the priorities of the local community. Each ULT
academy is tailored to the specific needs of the local community and has the
objective of providing a happy, safe and welcoming environment, and a high
quality education based on the principles of care, tolerance, discipling and
hard work.

Ethos
The ethos of COA wouid be rooted in Christian values but would embrace
these of all faiths and those with none. It would do so by promoting the

11 Q3407/2009

Page 13



Version submitled to BCSF 24.8.03

universal values of respect, tolerance, compassion, hard work and discipline,
through the relationships which pupils would see and experience as well as
threugh the curriculum and enrichment opportunities provided.

COA would be committed to high standards in all areas of academic and
personal development. It would challenge its pupils through a culture of high
expectations and rigorous frameworks which would encourage positive
attitudes. All pupils would have clear academic targets and their progress
against these would regularly be monitored and discussed with both pupiis
and their parents/carers.

COA would promote high quality models of teaching and learning to realise
the potential of all students, the ‘Best in Everyone’, by developing learner
skills and competencies. In this it would be supported by the ULT's Director
of Educational Strategies and by the LA’s Advisers who would work with staff
to develop effective pedagogies and to broaden awareness of alternative
learning approaches. Tha development of COA would be informed by
research, identified and evaluated by ULT's central education team which
would aiso encourage in-house action research,

The sponsors are conscious of the rich diversity of the local community. COA
would be inclusive and celebrate that diversity, it would provide strategies
appropriate to the needs of any individual struggling to realise hisfher needs.
It would recognise the importance of strong and effective welfare and
guidance processes and create a personal mentoring system for every pupil.
It would aiso seek to promote a twofold sense of responsibility within each
individual; firstly for self and secondly to demonstrate responsibility towards
others, in the local community and woridwide. in this way, COA would
generate an awareness of global citizenship within alt learners.

COA would develop clear practices to develop the following pupit qualities:
+ balanced and articulate with the intellectual freedom to be creative

the confidence to initiate

the resilience to cope with adversity

the compassian to serve others

a iife-long love of learning

* 5 o @

Partnerships and Collaboration

City of Oxford Academy would work closely with partners to deliver its vision
and to ensure that it would integrate with, and contribute significantly to, the
existing local strategic plans for the area. It is proposed that this would

include:

Co-operation and colfaboration with partner primary schools in order to
envich the learning experience for all and develap effective continuity and
progression pians for pupils transferring to the academy at age 11. One
aspect of this would involve making the facilities of the Academy available
to primary school staff and pupils and for pupils to have an increased
access to the Academy in Year 6 prior to transition. Lead teachers in the
Academy would engage in relevant outreach work in primary schools to
provide master classes, particularly in the areas of the Academy's

12 4340742009

Page 14



Version submitted to DCSF 24.8.09

specialisms, and to support work in literacy and numeracy developrment.

Co-operation and collaboration with all other iocai secondary providers,
including the Oxford Academy, to ensure that the City of Oxford Academy
was fully involved in, and not isolated from, local collaborative
arrangements and developments. The Principal would work within the
existing collaborative arrangements to enhance the delivery of education
locally.

Partnerships with Oxford and Cherwell Valley College and Higher
Education institutions including Oxford University, Oxford Brockes and
Oxford Business School to identify and develop effective 14-19 pathways
and emphasise the seamiess and continuing nature of education for life-

tfong learmning.

Partnerships with locai industry and commerce to develop the Academy's
specialisms and work- related learning and the enfrepreneurial skills
which the Academy would aspire to develop in all its students. The
intention would be to develop further links with Unipart who would
coltaborate with the academy in the generation of programmes of study
relevant to work-refated and work-based learning and specificaily to a
new Business, Adminisiration and Finance Diptoma which the academy
would offer.

Materials and rescurces-access tc ULT's Learning Platform, through its
VLE, to access the wealth of learning and management resources
contained on the VLE. This would include, for each teacher, having the
opportunity to instantty downiload the whiteboard flipcharts, video clips
and wrilten resources which have been produced by staff across the
group. Within this would be resources made available by ULT's growing
partnherships with successful schools outside of its own group.

Access to ULT's VLE could be extended to all the proposed Academy's
feeder/partner primary schools enabling staff and pupils from the whole
catchment area to have access to the wealth of resources availabie from
within ULT's family of academies and private schools.

Partnerships with statutory and voluntary agencies to ensure the
development and delivery of on-site facilities by a wide range of muiti-
agency family and support services to address the needs of the
Academy’s students and their families at all stages of their development,
and to meet the wider needs of the local community. Partnerships would
aiso be developed with the Primary Care Trust to promote Heaithy living
and discussions would take place during feasibility as to the possibility of
co-locating a Drop-in Health Centre on the academy campus. Existing
links with Oxfam and the Museum of Modern Art in Oxford would also be
developed to enrich the social and cultural experiences of academy
students. The Art Room, a charity based at Oxford Community School
would be supported by the academy ta provide art as therapy to children
and young adults to help raise self-esteem, seif-confidence and
independence.

13 03/07/2009

Page 15



Version submitted to DCSF 24 8.09

e Partnerships with the County Councit: ULT would be fully committed to
playing a full role in Oxfordshire’s Children's Trust, supporting the
priorities of the Oxfordshire Children and Young Peopie’'s Plan and co-
operating with other partners to maximise the life chances of young
peopie in the wider community, and would engage fully in the Council's
strategy for extended schools and would play its full part in Oxfordshire’s
inclusion, SEN and Access policies.

Community Cohesion

The principles underpinning the Academy's ethos retate to a desire to
pramote high-levels of achievement for individuals. They also relfafe to the
promation of ethnic, religious and cultural tolerance and respect between
different groups of people living and working together. The Academy would
see itself as an active agent for community cohesion and seek every
opportunity for bringing the community together, supperting unity and
discouraging segregation. One dimension of this work would be reflected in
the academy’s ‘extended school’ agenda and, in collaboration with Oxford
council, it would explore ways in which it might accommodate and provide a
range of services and activities, beyond the school day, to help meet the
needs of students, their families and the wider community. The Academy
would welcome the apportunity to facilitate a range of childcare and
adult/family learning and support programmes-including language classes-
sports and recreation activities, healthcare and social services provision.
Encouraging use from a wide range of community members, including
organised community groups will actively attract parents in to access
services. The academy would maintain existing provision of supplementary
schoualing for the Chinese and Bangladeshi communities.

An All-Age Academy: Flexibilities and Advantages offered by the 3-19
model

Although CQOA is initially proposed as an 11-19 Academy, ULT and the
county council intend to explore, during feasibility, the opportunities and
advantages of extending the provision fo include the age-ranges of 3-11. An
ali-through academy would benefit from the experiences of another such 3-
19 ULT Academy, namely the Swindon Academy. The 3-19 age-span offers
many advantages and flexibilities and is seen as being a logical respense fo
the Children's Act (2004) and the Every Child Matters agenda. |t would:

+ realise the key objectives of Children’s Services; particularly the
potential of integrated services to children and families - high quality
investment in the early and primary years wouid secure high levels of
achievement among oider pupils

e by being sited an the same campus, reduce the well-documented
difficulties for pupils and families at key fransition points and allow
flexibility of age of transfer

o offer new opportunities for professional development and mutual
learning for staff working across phases, e g. early years — K§81, KS2-
K83, KS4-post-16. The Swindon Academy reports that its staff
welcomes these opportunities,

» facilitate the ‘extended schools' and iocal community agendas

14 03/07/2009

Page 16



Varsion subimitted to DCSF 24.2.09

described above

* benefit from a single governance, management and administration
which would be efficient and cost-effective

» with a common site and budget, enable the viring of funds more easily
from one priority to another; &.g. from upper secondary to early years

Key Characteristics of the Currictlum and of Teaching and Learning
Specialisms

The specialisms of COA would be 1) English and 2) Business and Enterprise
The choice of Engitsh is symbalic of the high aspirations and expectations of
the Academy. It would reflect a local need since for many pupils English
would be their second language. The predecessor school was a Business
and Enterprise school and the expertise in this area would be enhanced.
Both choices would complement the local mix of specialisms.

The English Specialism

COA would become a centre of excellence fo the benefit of pupils and the
local community more generally. There would be a particular emphasis on
developing innovative, exciting and engaging approaches to teaching
English, developing opportunities to work closely with local business and
community organisations. As well as discrete programmes of study and
enrichment activities it will tead in the development of cross-curricular tasks
in the form of enquiry-based projects and presentations where students
would work in teams to address real-life situations.

The Language Centre

The Language Centre would provide the infrastructure and pedagogical
approaches which would contribute to raising achievement in all subject
areas. it would develop links nationally with associations developing
excellence in the specialism. Where literacy levels are below national norms,
these wouid be addressed as a priority using ULT’s expertise in this area as
well as the National Literacy Strategy. For those pupils joining COA with a
literacy level below their chronological age, a targeted improvement
programme weuld be implemented to bring this level up to the required
standarg within two years. Poor literacy is one of the biggest barriers to
succass and COA wauld devdte significant resources in this area to benefit
not only its own pupils but those in other local primaries and their families,
many of which have little or no spoken English at home. It would develop
‘leading-edge’ work using the experiences of the sponsors, including those of
their high performing schools in the private sector as well as their ‘Lead
Teacher’ expertise. it would also incorporate the Chinese (4 — 18 years) and
Bangla (4 - 16) weekend schools which are hosted by Oxford Schoal. There
are ‘emerging’ languages including Polish and Portuguese for which
increased provision could be made as weli as the deveiopment of links with
Cheney School, Oxford which is a specialist language School.

Business and Enterprise
This specialism would be enhanced to:

» provide a visible Business and Enterprise ethos linking COA with lacal
employment as weli as global economic issues

1 5 D3/07/2008

Page 17



Version submitted to DCSF 24.8.09

» offer opportunities for team-based projects researching local, national
and international issues which would present and evaluate solutions

« create an enterprise-based environment for the encouragement of
‘enterprising’ individuals and an enterprising approach to teaching and
learning

« offer work-based and work-reiated courses for pupils which would be
additional routes to success by offering relevant experiences that
would address:

Leaming through work — a work experience programme tailored to pupits’

specific ambitions ambition including work experience and shadowing

experiences within Oxfordshire County Council

Learning for work — formal curriculum programmes which would

encourage enterprise skills, relevant perscnal competences and financial

literacy so preparing them more effectively for employment

Learning about work — programmes which focus on the understanding of

the economic, industrial and financial frameworks.

COA would share its specialist expertise and resources with other
schoals in the city. in the same way it would look to benefit from access
to the expertise of the different specialisms being deveicped by these
schools.,

General Curriculum Approaches

The sponsors would encourage the use of the best recent initiatives in
pedagogy: Personalised Learning, including individual Leaming Plans,
Assessment for Learning, 'Learning to Learn’, differentiated learning
pathways, especially for the 14-19 phase (see below) and the use of
advanced ICT systems that would provide ‘anywhere, anytime’ learning. ULT
has deveioped an ICT rich approach to learning; one which wouid see the
ubiquitous use of interactive whiteboards and related technologies such as
‘Activexpression’. ULT's research has confirmed that such technologies
permit information to be presented and student feedback to be received, in
more engaging ways. Personal tutors would be assigned to each student to
track progress regularly and frequently in individual Learning Plans as well
as nurturing the wider development of the individual. Active enquiry-based
approaches would embed enquiry and research at the heart of the pupil's
learning experience and real-life contexts wouid be provided to engage
pupils in learning outside the traditional classroom setting and facilitate
effective community and work-based learning.

Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS) 3-5

In considering the possibility of expanding COA to become an ali-through
prganisation, the council would engage clasely with the focat Children’s
centres and the local early learning charity, the Peers Early Learning Charity
{PEEP) which provides early years training and also runs a Children’s
Centre. In EYFS the curriculum would be based on the Early Leaming Goais
and would cover; knowledge and understanding of the world, creative
development, personal, soctal and emotional development, language,
number and physical development.

16 0310772009

Page 18



Varsion submitteg to DCSF 24.8.09

Key Stages 1 and 2
If an ali-through structure is progressed, the curriculum would be based on

the National Curriculum objectives but would follow the principles which are
central to the whole Academy with respect to pedagogical approaches
welfare and support systems, pupils tracking (with a particular focus on
specific groups of pupils) and enrichment. Strategies to address poor
language, literacy and numeracy development wouid be deployed rigorousty,
at every stage from age 3 to 11.

COA would be following closely the findings of the Rose Review of Primary
Education and also the Cambridge Primary Review and the government’s
response to them, anticipating significant changes in the Natienal Curriculum
in K81 and 2. Whatever the shape of the future primary curriculum, COA
wouid adopt a thematic and creative approach. All pupils would be involved
in a programme of Perseonal, Social, Health and Citizenship Education which
would tackle such matters as morats, bullying social values and heatth,
including sex education. Pupils would also follow an agreed syllabus for RE
which would cover knowiedge and understanding of different faiths.

Key Stage 3

This wouid have a clear focus to ensure that pupils achieve their targets.
Functional skilfs in English, Maths Science and ICT would be a priority both
for pupils progressing from COA’s primary phase and those joining COA in
Year 7. The Academy would work closely with its feeder/partner primary
schoois to identify and provide support both pre- and post-transition for all
new pupils, especially those who were under-achieving in these areas and
whose first language was not English.

Where particular and targeted support was required, Year 7 would function
as a transition year. Pupils would have a significant proportion of their
lessans taught by their ciass teacher in ‘Home-Base’ classrooms. Those
assessed as being ahead of expected norms would be challenged through
appropriate learning programmes which would accelerate their progress.

The curnculum would be modular, incorporating a broad range of core and
foundation programmes to ensure that pupiis would be in a position to make
informed choices later on. It would facilitate analysis not only of every pupil’s
abilities but also an exploration of previously unidentified talents through the
creation of a broad programme of enrichment opportunities. Each pupil
would receive advice and guidance from their Personal Tutor.

Key Stage 4

COA would anticipate considerable changes in the organisation of 14-19
courses in the next few years with the raising of the statutory age of
compuisory education and training first to 17 in 2012 and to 18 in 2013, the
evoluticn of diplemas and apprenticeships and new courses to reduce the
number of young people not in education, employment or training (NEETs)
Pupils would have access to a wide range of programmes and qualifications.
A core provision of English, Mathematics, Science, {CT, RE, PE Citizenship,
PSHA, Careers and Work-related Learning and Enterprise would be
compulsory. The there would be a choice of learning pathways, differentiated

17 0340712008

Page 19



Versien submitted 10 DCSF 24.8 08

acceording fo pupils' interests and ambitions — BTECs, traditional and appiied
GCSE's, diplomas or a combination of these.

Core Citizenship programmes would focus on local prionties linked to the
promotion of ocal cohesion. They would be linked to Personal, Social and
Heaith Education and include high quality sex and relationship lessons.
Similarly there would be a strong focus on such issues as racism, bullying
and anti-social behaviour, poverty and econcmic well-being; decision making
and problems-solving.

COA would promote the ‘student voice’ through community placements for
students, and the use of local community representatives to work with
students researching real local issues and exploring soiutions. The ‘student
voice’ would also manifest itself through student councils, part of the
citizenship programme exploring participation in local democracy. It would
also involve the creation of student newspapers and e-newsletters to
communicate lccal and giobal affairs. There would be placements of
students in the local community e.g. in homes for the elderly or conservation
projects which would raise their awareness and develop their personal skilis
and competences.

Key Stage 5

COA's 14-18 programmes would aim to raise aspirations, support
progression and play its part through active participation in the local 14-19
partnership of schools, college and work based providers, in ensuring that all
young people in Oxford are successfully engaged in education, training, or
employment with training. 14 — 19 partnerships have 2 days per week
common timetables to facilitate students’ attendance at non 'host’ settings
and the focal partnership has appointed a full time coordinator to develop the
shared offer. Post-16 COA would coffer a wide range of academic and
vocational courses from Levels 1 to 3, determined through consultation with
the local weil-established consortium which includes the six local secondary
schoois and the locai F.E. Coliege, Oxford and Cherwell Vailey College
{CCVC). COA would provide clear pathways and progression routes for its
students and enable reciprocal arrangements {o be put in place with other
providers. The sponsors recognise the need to work formally with other
schools, academies, colleges and work-based providers to build capacity,
not competition in post-18 provision.

Governance involving stakehoiders

COA would have a Local Governing Body comprising elected parent and
staff representatives, LA representatives and community governors identified
from locat businesses and community organisations, who collectively would
have the full range of skills and expertise to govern COA effectively. The first
chair of governars would be appointed by the sponsors with the key criterion
for selection being that he or she could offer the time and commitment to act
as a close ‘critical friend’ to the Principai.

The ULT Board is the overarching board for all its academies and each ULT
sponscred Academy has ifs own Local Governing Body (see above),

18 03/07/2009

Page 20



Verston submifted to DCSF 24.8.09

reflecting the importance ULT places on the need for its Academies to
connect closely with the communities they serve and to meet local needs.
The LGB plays a critically important role in providing chalienge and support
to the Principal, actively promoting the aims, ethos and aspirations of the
Academy and in acting as an active link with the ULT Board. The sponsors
would decide and review annually which responsibilities would be delegated
to the LGB. Training weuld be provided to all members of the LGB, the
maximum number of which is normaily 15.

Leadership and Management

Oxford School has struggled to recruit good teachers at all levels. There are
weaknesses in lsadership and management in both senior and middle
leadership, aithough recent initiatives being taken by the Executive
Headteacher have the potential to improve significantly the overall quality
and impact of ieadership on raising standards.

COA wolild be part of ULT's family of 15 (currently) academies and 12
private schools across the country. The leadership and management
structure woukt have both a vertical and tateral focus with responsibilities
clearly defined for each phase of learning or important theme, The principal,
SLT and staff would have regular support sessions to share management
approaches, curricuiim groups and development planning. COA would be
linked to ULT’s Virtual Learning Environment (VLE) and be abie to access
the wealth of learning and management resources that exist there.

These resources include for each teacher, the opportunity to download
instantly the whiteboard flipcharts, video clips and written resources which
have been produced by staff across the group. They would also have access
to the considerable resources of ULT’s growing partnerships with successful
schools outside its own group, including Winchester and Mariborough
Colleges. In particular it would have closa links to the ULT Academies in
Banbury and Swinden, the {atter being particularly relevant with its 3-19
structure.

The sponsors believe that this environment would attract good recruits who
would wish to work within an energised and dynamic institution which is part
of a successful system of support and development.

Future sustainability

innovative structures, relevant programmes of study and a strong
collaborative approach tc developing appropriate courses for the 14-19 age-
range would ensure that COA would be an outstanding and durable
contribution to the education provided in the City of Oxfard.

Section 4: Sites and Buildings

4.1

The academy would be located at the following address:
Glanville Road, Oxford QX4 244

19 03/07/2009

Page 21



Version submitted 1o DCSF 24.8.08

The approximate size of the site te be transferred to the Academy Trustis: ...0....... hectares

[ Please confirm that the proposed academy would have access to
playing fields of a sufficient size to deliver its proposed vision and Yes X
curriculum

If not, please explain how would the PE curricuium be defivered:

Please provide details;

Please aftach a copy of the Ordnance Survey Map with the Alfsched
boundaries of the Academy site clearly marked.

4.2
Ali parties are content with the selection of this site and no others are under consideration
for this project.

Confirmed X

The site of the proposed academy is owned by (mark one with an x}

LA X
Diocese
CTC Trust

Cther
If other, please provide details: Oxford School is a Foundation schoo! but the site has nat yet
been formally transferred to the governing bods.

If it is net currently a school site, please provide details of the ownership and current usage
of the entire site and details of who would bear the costs of acquiring the site:

Nofe: If the site is currently a school site, it would be transferred at nil cost (or leased at
nominal rent) to the Academy Trust prior fo the academy opening, with terms agreed
prior to Funding Agreement

Yes X
If the site is owned by the LA does it intend to seek permission to No
dispose of any part of it?

NIA

if yes, please provide details and confirm that you would abide by PIS guidelines regarding
contributions to the capital cost of the academy project. It is proposed that the footprint of the
original Oxfard School buildings {1830s build) be considerad for disposai to generate a
capital receipt to confribute to the primary school element of the academy shou!d this be an
agreed outcome of the feasibility stage. It mav be possible to dispese of additional built area

20 030712009

Page 22




Version submited to DCSF 24.8.09

| footprint as the County Council owns an adjacent playing field which could be added to the
academy site to ensure sufficient playing fields. PfS guidelines, subject to any detailed
negotiations held as part of the feasibility stage, will be complied with.

j If the academy proposes te open in existing buildings (Section 3.3} ptease provide a brief
description of the age, size and condition of these buildings:

The original buildings are early 1930s, added to in the 50s, 80s, 70s, 90s and, most recently
in 2001-3 (Oxford City three — two tier reorganisation). With the exception of the newest
buildings, condition and suitabiity is at best satisfactory and in a number of cases poor.

{ There is adequate general and soecialist teaching space.

4.3

Please provide details of discussions with LA planners or legal advisors on any likely
planning or legal restrictions that could preciude academy building development, iead to
abnormal costs or impact on the proposed programme: None identified through the
production of the existing school’s site development plan. If the academy is expanded to
include primary provis:on it is likely that a developer contribution toward highways
imeravements will be reguired.

Should it be necessary to co-locate primary schools, special schools, Pupii Referral Units,
youth or community groups currently sharing the site, please confirm that the LA would bear
associated capital and revenue costs.

Yes {please give more information} It is
intended, through the feasibility stage, to
explore in detail the patential to create an all-
through academy by locating nursery as well
as primary provision on the site. in addition Not applicable {mark with a x)
the co-tocation, but not incorporation into the
academy, of a special school will be
considered. These are NOT currently located
on the site of Oxdord School.

| Where required in response to site constraints or as a result of remodelling, please provide
details of a decanting ptan for existing occupants during construction and details of who
would pay the associated costs: The existing school is located on a generous site and the
existing buildings are operating at below maximum student capacity. it is therefore

anticipated that new building ¢an be constructed whilst the existing school buildings remain

in use without the need for major decanting. In respect of the one teaching block likely to be

| retained sumplus capacity elsewhere in the school should allow for refurbishment on 3

| phased basis. If decanting costs for the secondary element are identified through the
feasibility stage we would expact these to be funded from the academy grant, |

Please confirm that the LA would meet the cost of any off- site works that may be
associated with the development of the academy.

Confirmed 1 X

4.4

21 03072000

Page 23



Version submitted to DCSF 24.8.09

The Departmant intends to detliver alt procurement through Parinerships for Schools (PS}
and Local Authorities.

if approved, this academy wouid be procured through: (Please mark one with an x}

BSF Local Education Partnership

PfS National Framework

Section 5: Agreements

5.1 Sponsor Agreement

Some categories of sponsar (listed below) are not required to make 2 financial contribution to
the endowment fund, or to sign a Deed of Gift. The Department would nonetheless expect the
Academy Trust to establish the means of receiving and to use reasonabie endeavours to raise

donations,

Name of l.ead Spensor: United Learning Trust

Amount of sponsorship to be contriblted:

Name of co-sponsor/s: Oxfordshire County Council

Amotrt of sponsorship to be contributed:

Governance arrangements 1.e. composition of the trustee board and the governing body:

Please note: sponsors other than local authorities would appoint a controlling
majority of the governing body

*The following categories of sponsor are not required to make a financial contribution ta the
endowment fund.

Flease indicate if sponsor/s fall into any of the categories below:

Existing sponsor who has already contributed £2million as financial
sponsorship

University/College

School or other educational establishment

Diocese

LPlease confirm that sponsors understand and are content with the roles and responsibilities J

22 03167/2009

Page 24



Varsion submitted te DCSF 24.8.09

| of the Sponsor, as set out In Sponsorship Guide: Establishing an Academy.

|

I Confirmead X

5.2 Local Authority Agreement
Does the LA agree to ail aspects of this proposal, including the admissions | Yes X
criteria proposed in Section 37 NO

| Does the LA confirm that it would bring forward proposals for the closure Yes X
of any predecessor schools? No

I Is this proposal inciuded {or due 1o be included) within the LA’s BSF Yes l X

I Strategy for Change? No ‘

[ If you have answerad no to any of these questions, pleass provide full details:

If this project involves a predecessor school, please provide details of the proposad
consuitation that the LA would undertake on its ciosure;

Using the model applied to the creation of the North Oxfordshire Academy (replacing
Drayton School, Banbury) a joint consultation on the proposed closure and opening of a
replacement academy would be undertaken by Oxfordshire County Council and the United
Learning Trust. This would reinforce the key message that the proposal is to replace
provision rather than to discontinue any provision. An independent consultancy agency will
be engaged to ascertain, analyse and report on the views of key stakeholders including
students, parents, City Councii, locai elected representatives, community groups, trade
unions ete,

" ] |
Where staff at existing schools transfer to an academy, please
confirm that the LA agrees to indemnify the academy in regpect of all
employment costs relating to the period prior to the transfer, which
will include without limitation the costs arising out of any equal pay
claims relating to that period,

Confirmed

Please confirm that the LA would contribute towards the costs associated with TUPE as
follows:

1. to meet ail costs — including any severance, redundancy or associated pension costs
associated with any restructuring resulting from or arising out of:

s an academy inheriting staff from more than one school
s Academy operating on fewer sites than predacessor schooi(s);

* Academy offering fewer places than at the predecessor school(s);

* the predecessar school(s) being averstaffed: or

23 03/G7/2009

Page 25



Version submitted to DCSF 24.8.08

» the predecessor school{s} running at a deficit.

2. to meet 50% of any cther severance and associated costs incurred by an academy not
covered by the criteria above.

All costs referred ta relate o those incurred in the run up to
the academy opening or at the point of opening {allowing time ContirmEd | %
for the academy to follow due process) and not some time
thereafter.

5.3 Neighbouring Local Authority Agreement

if the proposed academy is likely to have an impact on schools in Yes
naighbouring local authorities have these authorities been consulted about
this academy project? Mo

N/A X

Where applicable please provide details:

5.4 Governing Body Agreement

is the Governing Body of any predecassor school(s) content with this Yes X
proposal?

No

N/A

was given at a full govemning body meeting in July but reservations were expressed about
the incorporation of an existing primary school into the academy. The confirmed minutes are
not yet available but are expected to be available foliowing the next governing body meeting
in September.

5.5 Learning and Skills Council (LSC) Agreement

Has the locat L.SC been consuited on and agreed to any proposed Yes X

post -16 provision? No

Is g letter confirming support attached? T : \—(es X
No

If no - Please provide copies of any correspondence and give details of LSC objections:

5.6 Diocese Agreement

Yes

Where the relevant predecessor schoot is a VA school, please confirm that
the Diocese/Archdiocese has agreed to this proposal and has formal Board No

of Education / Diocesan Scheols Commission agreement. N/A x

24 0310772009

Page 26




Version submiited o DCSF 24.8.09

YWhere applicable please provide details:

5.7 Miscellaneous

The Department has established a Framework for the Project Management of academy
projects following an open competition. This arrangement has been made to ensure
compliance with the government procurement regulations and avoid lengthy competition
processes. The ten project management companies appointed o our Framewaork have been
selected on the basis of their experience, expertise and commitment to deliver a quality
service,

Ptease confirm that all parties are content for a Project Management company to be
selected from the DCSF framewaork.

*Please note that alternative arrangements may be agreed for muttiple sponsors through
discussion with the Project Lead.

X

Agreed

Please confirm that all parties understand and are content with the roles and responsibilities |

of the Sponsor, Project Steering Group, Academy Trust, LA and PfS in ralation to the
academy buildings, as set out in Delivering Academy Buildings through PrS;
Confirmed | %
Please provide details of any known impediments, risks, condifions or hazards not
mentioned efsewhera in this document;
25 03/07/2008

Page 27



Version submitied to DCSF 24.8.09

5.8 Signatory details
{Additional signature details may be inserted if there is more than one ¢o-sponsor)

We fuily support ali aspects of this Expression of Interest and agree to use it as a basis
for the future develppment of an academy project.

/
'; ~
Signature AN_(K &_jt 0 )

{For and on behalf of the I sponsar}

Name in full 812 ELJPN H&M
Postion:  CHLEF %CQT'WG-; LUNAVTED

Date: cpql Ql o}
Signature W

(For and on behalf of the co-sponser)

Name in full Janet Tomtlinson
Position: Director Children, Young People & Families

Date 2.5/0F101

Signature W

(For and on behalf of the local authority)

Name in full Janet Tomlinson

Paosition’ Director Children, Young Pecple & Families

Date 25 1007

26 03f07/2008

Page 28



Version submitted to DCSF 24.8.00

Section 6: Contact details

Name of lead sponsor representative: Martyn Baker

Address: 23 Chape{ Street
Titchmarsh
MNN14 3DA

Email: martyn baker@church-schools.com
Tel: 01832 - 730326
Mobite: 07725823586

Fax:

Name of co-sponsor representative: Roy Leach

Address: County Hail
New Road

OXFORD

OX1 IND

Email roy.leach@oxfordshire.gov.uk
Tel 01865 - 816458
Mobile: NFA

Fax:

Name of focal authority representative: Roy Leach

Address: As above

Email:
Tel:
Mohile:

Fax:

27

Page 29

0310712308



Version submitted o DCSF 24.8.09

School 1

Name of predecessor school representative: Paul O'Brien {Executive headteacher)
Address: Oxford School
Glanvilie Road

OXFORD
OX4 2AU

Email:
Tel: 01885 - 428200

Mohite:

Fax:

28 03/07:2009

Page 30



	Agenda
	4 Call in of a decision by the Cabinet - Oxford School - Feasibility Study into replacing it with an academy
	CH_OCT0509R03


